
 

 
 

Polk County Conservation Board Meeting – February 12, 2014 

 
 
February 12, 2014 - 5:30 p.m. 
 
Po lk  County Admin i s t ra t ion  B ldg.  
111  Cour t  Avenue,  Room 120 
Des  Moines,  IA  50309  
 

AGENDA  
 

1) Opening Items 
a) Roll Call 
b) Action on the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 

2) Consent Agenda Items 
Note:  These are routine items and will be enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless a Board Member, PCCB 
employee or member of the public requests an item be removed to be considered separately.  Please notify a PCCB Member to 
have an item removed. 

a) Action on Bill List:  approve the PCCB Januar 2014 bill list 
b) Disposal:  Pull Carts:  approve disposal of 38 pull carts from the Jester Park Golf Course by first offering the carts to any 

interested County Conservation Board and if no interest, approve the pull carts being scrapped. 
c) UP industrial Line, Publish Notice of Public Hearing:  direct staff to advertise for and proceed with scheduling 

a public hearing, to be held at the March Board meeting, for the purpose of selling the portion of the abandoned UP industrial 
line between Ankeny and Des Moines, lying within the corporate limits of Ankeny, to the City of Ankeny. 

d) Contract Mowing – Memorandum of Understanding:  authorize the Director to sign Memorandum of 
Understanding agreements for mowing services provided by PCCB. 

e) Cleaning Services:  approve the annual renewal of the three year contract for cleaning services with Stratus Building 
Solutions. 

f) Purchase:  Vehicle:  approve purchase a 2015 Chevy Silverado 3500 HD cab/chassis service truck from Bob Brown 
Chevrolet for a price not to exceed $38,830. 

g) Purchase:  Trailer:  approve purchase of a 2014 Big Tex 25’x5’ 45,000# trailer from Thomas Bus Sales, Inc. for a price not 
to exceed $22,164. 

 
3) PCCB Bylaws & Signature Authorization 
4) Strategic Plan, Approval 
5) PCWLL CY 2013 Net Expenditures / PCWLL Project Update 
6) Yellow Banks Park, Dam 
7) 28E Agreement, Mark C. Ackelson Trail 
8) 28E Agreement, Easter Lake 
9) Easter Lake Park – Mark C. Ackelson Trail, Phase II - Contract Amendment 
10) The Tomorrow Plan 
11) Browns Woods, Trails and Amentities 
12) Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) Update 
 
 

1



 

 
 

Polk County Conservation Board Meeting – February 12, 2014 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS       
FINANCIAL REPORTS  
DISCUSSION & REMARKS 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The information identified on this agenda may be obtained in accessible formats by qualified persons with a disability. To receive 
information or to request an accommodation to participate in a meeting, hearing, service, program or activity conducted by this office, 
contact the Polk County Conservation Board Office, 11407 NW Jester Park Drive, Granger, 515-323-5300. 

2



1) Opening Items 
 

a) Roll Call 
 
b) Action on the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 
 
The Polk County Conservation Board met in regular session on January 8, 2014.  Minutes for the 
meeting are attached. 
 

2) Consent Agenda Items 
 

a) Action on the Bill List 
 

January 2014 expenditures have been e-mailed to the Board for review. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve the PCCB January 2014 bill list. 
 
 
b) Disposal:  Pull Carts 
 

Green Golf Partners has purchased new pull carts for the Jester Park Golf Course. They 
have no use for the 38 old carts; therefore, the carts are returned to our inventory. The 
condition of the pull carts is poor and it is not cost effective for the PCCB to repair them.  
The inventory and estimated value are as follows:  
 

• (13) Bag Boy pull carts w/ pneumatic tires – value, possibly $10.00 for a  total of 
$130.00 

• (12) Bag Boy pull carts w/ solid tires – value, possibly $5.00 for a total of  $60.00 
• (13) damaged pull carts w/pneumatic tires in need of repair – value $0.00 
• 30 – 40 different tires and random parts for repair – value $0.00 

 

Staff is recommending that the Board approve disposing of the 38 pull carts by first offering 
the pull carts to any County Conservation Board who might be interested in them, and if 
there is no interest, the pull carts would then be scrapped. 
 

- George Lentz 
Eqpt. Maint. Supt. 
 

STAFF  RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve disposal of 38 pull carts from the 
Jester Park Golf Course by first offering the carts to any interested County Conservation 
Board and if no interest, approve the pull carts being scrapped. 
 
 
c) UP Industrial Line, Publish Notice of Public Hearing 

 
PCCB is acting as the grant agent in the purchase of two portions (out of three) of the old UP 
rail corridor from the Iowa Natural Heritage Foundation (INHF).  We and the City of Ankeny 

3



were co-applicants and received a grant from the State Recreational Trails Grant Fund. The 
third section is the subject of next year’s State Recreational Trails application. 
 
The INHF has purchased the entire property from the UP and will sell two of the three total 
sections to the PCCB.  Polk County will, in turn, sell one of the segments to Ankeny to recoup 
Ankeny’s pledge of matching funds as detailed in the grant application. 
 
Once we have purchased the land it is necessary for the PCCB as well as the Board of 
Supervisors to hold public hearings to dispose of the property, as required by state law. 
 
Staff is asking that the Board take action directing staff to advertise that a public hearing for 
the purpose of disposing of land be held at the regularly scheduled March meeting of the 
PCCB.  At that time, staff will recommend that the PCCB pass a motion requesting that the 
Board of Supervisors sell the property to the City of Ankeny. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board direct staff to advertise for and proceed with 
scheduling a public hearing, to be held at the March Board meeting, for the purpose of selling 
the portion of the abandoned UP industrial line between Ankeny and Des Moines, lying within 
the corporate limits of Ankeny, to the City of Ankeny.  

 
 
d) Contract Mowing, Memorandum of Understanding 
 
PCCB has been assisting other governmental agencies in the maintenance of their multi-use trails 
for a number of years. The original intent of the proposal was to allow PCCB to assist in the 
maintenance of trails that were contiguous to PBC trails but under different ownership. At this 
time, we are planning on assisting Jasper County with contract mowing on the Chichaqua Valley 
Trail and City of Pleasant Hill on the Gay Lea Wilson (GLW) Trail. In exchange for mowing Pleasant 
Hill provides plowing services on the GLW trail.  
 
Our agreement which utilizes our boom mower (John Deere 6410 and Alamo Machete Mower) in 
return for payment has been a successful agreement. Although it is not a money maker, it has 
allowed trails to have a consistent maintenance regime and cover PCCB 
operating/maintenance costs. Our current rate per hour is $65.00. 
 
Due to the increased trail mileage, I have informed our cooperators that this may be the last year 
we are able to provide services unless additional equipment and staff is provided. 
 
A copy of MOU with Jasper County is attached.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION

 

:  That the Board authorize the Director to sign Memorandum of 
Understanding agreements for mowing services provided by PCCB. 

 
e) Cleaning Services 
 
PCCB needs to take action on the three year contract with annual renewable terms for cleaning 
services.  Therefore, we are asking that the PCCB approve the continuation of the three year 
contract with Stratus  Building Solutions.  Staff have been satisfied with their service. 
 
This is the second year for this contract (1/1/14-12/31/14). 
 

4



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   That the PCCB approve the annual renewal of the three year 
contract for cleaning services with Stratus Building Solutions. 
 
 
f) Purchase:  Vehicle 
 
The FY 2013-14 capital outlay budget includes $37,000 to replace a 1993 Dodge 1 ton service 
truck. 
 
Staff researched the purchase of a 3500 cab/chassis truck to meet our needs and specifications.  
Research was done on the State of Iowa IDOT and DAS contracts. No 3500 cab/chassis trucks 
were available.  Bids went out to three dealers for a 2015 Chevy Silverado 3500 H.D. cab/chassis 
service truck.  Bids came in as follows: 
 
 Karl Chevrolet - $39,342 
 Bob Brown Chevrolet - $37,830 
 Beneventi Chevrolet – No bid 
 
Staff is requesting a contingency for vehicle adds or changes of $1,000. 
 

- George Lentz 
Eqpt. Maint. Supt. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve purchase a 2015 Chevy Silverado 3500 HD 
cab/chassis service truck from Bob Brown Chevrolet for a price not to exceed $38,830. 
 
 
g) Purchase:  Trailer 
 
The FY 2013-14 capital outlay budget includes $25,000 to replace a 1984 Trailking TK30 trailer. 
 
Staff researched the purchase of a 2014 40,000# trailer to meet our needs and specifications.  
Several brands of trailers were researched and three dealers were contacted for quotes.  Quotes 
came in as follows: 

 
Vendor/Description Quote 

Trailboss Trailers, Inc. – Macon, MS 
2014 Trailboss 40,000# Tri-Axle Tag Trailer  
(met specifications) 

 

 
$24,550 

Ziegler Cat – Altoona, IA 
2014 Trailking TK40LP 
(deck width  96”, specification not met of 102”)          
(quoted with air brakes, specification was for electric 
brakes) 
 

 
$23,150 

Thomas Bus Sales, Inc. – Des Moines, IA 
2014 Big Tex 25’x5’ 45,000# G.V.W.R. Trailer 
(met specifications 

 
$21,914 

Contingency request for equipment adds or changes $250 
 

- George Lentz 
Eqpt. Maint. Supt. 

5



 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve purchase of a 2014 Big Tex 25’x5’ 45,000# 
trailer from Thomas Bus Sales, Inc. for a price not to exceed $22,164. 
 
 

3) PCCB Bylaws & Signature Authorization 
 
PCCB governance documents provide that the Bylaws must be reviewed each year at the first 
regular Board meeting in January.  Approval may be proposed at any regular meeting, but must 
again be considered at the next following regular Board meeting before adoption. 
 
The Bylaws with revisions were brought to the Board for consideration at the January 2014 
meeting.  Attached is a copy of the Bylaws with revisions.  If the Board approves of the revisions, 
the Board will need to adopt the revised Bylaws. 
 
 
One of the modifications recommended to the Bylaws relates to signature authority granted to 
the Director.   Board discussion is to occur on the process for documenting such “authorization” as 
part of the Director’s signature. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve the PCCB Bylaws as modified. 
 

 
4) Strategic Plan, Approval 
 

The “final” 2014 PCCB Strategic Plan was completed and distributed to the Board for review.  A 
copy of the Plan is also attached for your reference.  If the Board has no modifications to the Plan, 
staff recommends approval as presented. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve the 2014 PCCB Strategic Plan. 

 
 
5) PCWLL CY 2013 Net Expenditures / PCWLL Project Update 
 

Review of PCWLL CY 2013 net expenditures is being revisited as discussion did not occur on it at 
the Board’s January 2014 meeting.  
 
Attached is a copy of the PCWLL calendar year net expenditures that was given to the Polk 
County Budget Manager for review by her and Polk County’s bond counsel.  Bond counsel will be 
making sure that we stayed within the parameters of the reimbursement resolution that the BOS 
approved on August 18, 2013, in the amount of $9,859,002.   
 
The net expenditures through December 31st totaled $6,702,240 which is considerably less than 
the resolution as we still have projects to complete that have been contracted for just not 
executed at this time.  Bonds were issued in December of 2013 for $14,030,000 which includes the 
CY 2013 expenditures.  We have eighteen months from the December 2013 issuance date to 
spend these bond funds. 
 
Staff will also be giving a short presentation on current bond projects. 
 

 Discussion only.  No action by the Board is necessary at this time.     
 
 

6



6) Yellow Banks Park, Dam 
 

The US Government (Corps of Engineers) has a flowage easement on the Yellow Banks property 
to allow for flooding from Lake Red Rock.  The Yellow Banks dam is built within the flood pool of 
Lake Red Rock.  Structures such as the Yellow Banks Dam would not be permitted within the flood 
pool of Lake Red Rock without a consent to easement structures.  PCC will be bringing to the 
Board a Consent to Easement that will permit the dam to exist. 
 
USACE will be  granting an after-the-fact consent for the dam. This document, “The Corps of 
Engineers Consent to Easement Structures” will have conditions to permit the dam to remain.  The 
consent to easement structures does not extinguish the US Government flowage easement. 
 
The Board Chair will have a place to sign to accept the conditions and consent instrument. 

 
- Mark Dungan 

Natural Resources Manager 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  To be presented at the meeting. 
 
 

7) 28E  Agreement, Mark C. Ackelson Trail 
 

The City and County staff have been working on the design and funding of the Mark C. Ackelson 
Trail for many years.  The resulting funding acquired to date is a combination of grants from 
multiple sources and to both agencies, individually as well as jointly.  Both organizations have also 
committed local funding toward the project. 
 
It is in the public’s best interest that the grant funds and CIP funding be combined and that the 
construction, management, and law enforcement of the entire circumferential trail be managed 
by one agency 
 
This 28E details the transfer of grant and CIP funding from the City to PCCB and how the future 
management of the trail will be administered.  Copy attached. 
 

- Loren Lown 
Parks & Natural Areas Plng Administrator 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approves of the 28E Agreement as written and 
authorizes the Chair to sign same and that the Board further instruct staff to work with the City of 
Des Moines Parks and Recreation Department to place the document before the Des Moines City 
Council and to record the document with the Secretary of State when all parties have signed the 
agreement. 

 
 
8) 28E Agreement, Easter Lake 
 

Staff has been working with the Iowa Dept. of Natural Resources (DNR) for the acquisition of a 
property near Easter Lake which will serve as a deposition site for the estimated 600,000 cubic 
yards of silt to be removed from Easter Lake. 
 
The DNR has agreed to commit $100,000 toward the purchase and we will need to sign a 28E 
Agreement with the State to facilitate the transfer of funds. 
 

7



The DNR has their legal staff working on the language of that document but it is not complete.  
There will be a short time frame between when the Iowa Natural Heritage Foundation (INHF) has 
acquired the property and when the PCCB acquires title.  The DNR wants to pay the funds at that 
time.  We will need the ability to act during that short window.  PCCB will retain full title to the 
property. 
 
Staff suggests that the Board authorize the Chair to sign the 28E which will detail the commitment 
of State funding toward the purchase of the property, when that document is fully prepared.  The 
document will be reviewed and accepted by the Boards legal counsel prior to being presented 
to the Chair for signing. 
 

- Loren Lown 
Parks & Natural Areas Plng Administrator 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board authorize the Chair to sign the 28E Agreement being 
prepared by PCCB and Iowa DNR staff detailing the commitment of $100,000 in State funding 
toward the purchase of property near Easter Lake when that document is completed and 
approved by counsel. 

 
 
9) Easter Lake Park – Mark C. Ackelson Trail, Phase II – Contract Amendment 
 

Snyder and Associates was selected as our engineer for the trail work at Easter Lake many years 
ago and have been under contract to provide preliminary survey and design for what has 
become the Mark C. Ackelson Trail.  The second phase of this three phase project is bidding 
March of this year. 
 
The existing contract with Snyder and Associates does not cover construction engineering, 
additional survey, construction staking, material testing, expected trail realignments, contract 
administration, and record keeping.  A supplemental amendment (#1) was issued to cover those 
expenses for phase I. 
 
Phase I was built this past summer with local funding which does not require nearly as much 
supervision and documentation as will the later two phases.  Those two phases to be let through 
the IA DOT system for obtaining bids and constructed, in part, using State, Federal, and MPO 
grant funding will require extensive participation by the construction engineer to ensure the 
process is built and billed according to federal requirements.   
 
This amendment of $93,600, Supplemental Services # 2, is for construction administration, 
observation, testing, and survey staking.  Copy attached. 
 
This additional sum  will bring the total engineering services for phase II to approximately 22% of 
total construction costs (phase I was 19%), which is within the 20-25% range detailed in the IA DOT 
Federal-aid Participation Consultant Cost Guidelines. 
 

- Loren Lown 
Parks & Natural Areas Plng Administrator 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board accepts Supplemental Services No. 2 related to the 
Mark C. Ackelson Trail, Phase II, as proposed by Snyder and Associates at a cost not to exceed 
$93,600 and authorizes the Chair to sign same. 
 
 

8



 
10) The Tomorrow Plan 
 
 The Tomorrow Plan is now complete.  Attached is a summary of The Tomorrow Plan and following 

is the link to the final plan:  http://www.thetomorrowplan.com/ttp-final-report/ 
 
 The Tomorrow Plan has been formally approved by the De Moines Area Metropolitan Planning 

Organization’s Policy Committee.  Now the plan is being brought to communities and counties 
for general resolutions of support.  The Polk County Board of Supervisors approved the Proposed 
Resolution of Support at their January 14, 2014 meeting. 

 
 Angela Connolly is the Chair of the Steering Committee for the Tomorrow Plan.  At the Board’s 

October 2013 meeting she, Pat Boddy, and Tom Hadden shared with the Board information 
about the Tomorrow Plan as well as the relationship of their regional planning efforts with what 
we do as a Conservation Board.  

  
 PCCB is being asked to pass a resolution of support for The Tomorrow Plan.  Attached is the 

Proposed Resolution of Support for the PCCB’s consideration and approval. 
 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board authorize the Chair to sign the  Proposed Resolution of 

Support endorsing The Tomorrow Plan. 
 
 
11) Browns Woods, Trails and Amenities 
 
 The new parking lot was completed last fall in conjunction with the Southwest Connector project 

and located at the east end of Browns Woods (this street will be renamed Browns Woods Court). 
PCCB staff, the City of West Des Moines and Polk County Public Works have worked together to 
complete this portion of the project. Most of the funding to date has been provided by West Des 
Moines and Polk County Board of Supervisors. 

 
 The following is a list of amenities and work that will be completed this spring/summer as well as 

associated cost estimates. 
 

Modern flush men’s and women’s restroom facility from CXT .. $ 43,320.00 
Parking Lot lights ...............................................................................      4,000.00 
Concrete trail connector and associated flatwork ....................      5,000.00 
Hiking Trail construction ...................................................................    19,000.00 
Landscaping/seeding .....................................................................      3,100.00 
Information kiosk ..............................................................................      5,000.00 
Contracted services, i.e. plumbing, electrical.............................    15,000.00 
Contingency .....................................................................................    
 TOTAL ..............................................................................  $97,920.00 

  3,500.00 

 
- Wayne Johnson 

   Const/Maint Manager  
 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Board approves the estimated project cost of $97,920 for this 

project and that the Board chair sign a quote agreement with CXT in the amount of $43,320. This 
project will be completed by a combination of contracted services and PCC staff. Funding for 
this project is provided by the PCWLL Bond. 

 
 
  

9

http://www.thetomorrowplan.com/ttp-final-report/�


12) Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) Management Strategy 
 
 Staff has developed an EAB management strategy that they will work from internally and 

communicate to the public. Included within this packet is an overview of what PCCB has done 
to prepare for the arrival of the Emerald Ash Borer and what we will do in the future to address 
the resulting impacts and damage. PCCB has taken a proactive and thoughtful management 
approach. Mark Dungan, Natural Resource Manager, will outline this approach and answer any 
questions you may have about EAB at the Board meeting.   

 
 
 
 

10



 
 
 

Polk County Conservation Board 
Polk County Admin. Bldg. 

Room 120 
Des Moines, IA 

 
 
 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE POLK COUNTY CONSERVATION BOARD 
 
 

The Polk County Conservation Board met in regular session on Wednesday, 
January 8, 2014.  The meeting was called to order at 5:32 p.m. 
 
 

 
#1 – Roll Call 

Members Present: Levis, Smith, Johnson, Cataldo 
Members Absent: Kurovski 
 
 

 
#1b – Action on the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 

MOTION:  Moved by Johnson to approve the December 11, 2013 meeting minutes as 
written. 

 
VOTE YEA:  Levis, Smith, Johnson, Cataldo 

 
 

 
#2 – Consent Agenda 

MOTION:  Moved by Smith to approve the following consent agenda items: 
a) December 2013 bill list; 
b) the presented user fees for the Jester Park Equestrian Center with an 

effective date of March 1, 2014 for the fees except for the outside 
boarding increases which will be effective July 1, 2014; and the Board 
acknowledges receipt of the proposed Jester Park Golf Course price list 
from Green Golf Partners for the 2014 golfing season and acknowledge 
that the proposed prices are in conformance with pricing guidelines 
established by the Board; 

c) ratifying approval to purchase of a Tempest EF-4 Commercial Log Splitter 
from Tempest Wood Splitter, Inc. at a cost not to exceed $15,200 and 
utilizing REAP funds for the expense. 

 
VOTE YEA:  Levis, Smith, Johnson, Cataldo 

 
 

11



Board Meeting:  January 8, 2014             2 
 
 

 
#3 – PCCB Bylaws & Signature Authority 

The Board considered the Bylaws as presented with modifications. 
 
Signature authority discussion was delayed to the February meeting. 
 

 

 
#4 – Strategic Plan Update 

Rich Leopold, Deputy Director, reviewed the attachments included in the packet.  Next 
step is the final strategic plan.  Board will be receiving the final strategic plan prior to the 
next board meeting for review.    He anticipates asking the Board to approve the 
document at the February meeting. 
 
 

 
#5 – FY 14/15 PowerPoint Presentation & PCWLL CY 2013 Net Expenditures 

Director Parker did an overview of the FY 14/15 budget PowerPoint presentation to be 
presented to the Board of Supervisors.   
 
No discussion was held on the PCWLL CY 2013 net expenditures. 
 
 

 

#6 – Crop Ground Rentals, Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt and Eagle Roost Wildlife 
Area 

MOTION: Moved by Smith to accept the high bid for all packets as identified: Packet A 
– Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt to Douglas Rose, Ankeny, Iowa, 166.2 
acres, $287 per acre; Packet B – Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt to David C. 
Marshall, Pleasantville, Iowa, 208.4 acres, $290 per acre; Packet C – 
Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt to MLF Farms, Mitchellville, Iowa, 208.1 
acres, $223 per acre; and Packet D – Eagle Roost Wildlife Area to Wilbur E. 
Goodhue, Inc., Carlisle, Iowa, 100.7 acres, $291 per acre for crop ground 
bids at Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt and Eagle Roost Wildlife Area and 
authorize the Director to enter into contracts with said bidders; and the 
Board further authorizes the Director to contract with the second high bidder 
should the high bidder be unable to enter into contract. 

 
 VOTE YEA:  Levis, Smith, Johnson, Cataldo 
 
 

 
#7 – Contract Modifications – Facility Reservations & Camping Reservation 

MOTION:  Moved by Levis to approve the presented contracts as modified for facility 
reservations and camping reservations and authorize the Director to modify 
the contracts if necessary. 

 
 VOTE YEA:  Levis, Smith, Johnson, Cataldo 

12



Board Meeting:  January 8, 2014             3 
 
 

None. 
Public Comments 

None  
Discussion Items 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
Prepared by:  Cindy Lentz 
 
Approved:   

13



14



15



BYLAWS 
AS AMENDED, FEBRUARY 12, 2014 

GOVERNING THE ADMINISTRATION, THE DEVELOPMENT, 
THE OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT OF THE 

POLK COUNTY CONSERVATION BOARD 
AND ITS FACILITIES 

 
 
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 
 
WHEREAS, the Bylaws as originally adopted on the 8th day of January, 1958, and as 
amended at the beginning of each year thereafter by the Polk County Conservation Board for 
the administration, the development, and the operation and management of its areas, its 
facilities, and its employees, needs to be corrected and again updated, and  
 
WHEREAS, to expand, to clarify, and to make more effective certain portions of the Bylaws, 
amendments were proposed and considered and adopted as amended at the regular meeting 
of the Board on February 12, 2014.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, We, the undersigned members of the Conservation Board, as duly 
appointed by the Polk County Board of Supervisors, and as authorized by Chapter 350, Code 
of Iowa, do so decree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I.  That all the covenants and provisions of former Bylaws as amended and adopted 
by the Polk County Conservation Board prior to this date are here and now annulled, canceled, 
revoked, and of no consequence for effect in the administration, development or operation and 
management of its areas, its facilities, nor its employees. 
 
ARTICLE II.  That Chapter 350, Code of Iowa, is recognized as, and declared to be, the 
governing authority; and that the purpose, and the power and duties, as defined and set forth 
in said Chapter shall control the functions of the Conservation Board, its employees, and/or its 
facilities. 
 
ARTICLE III.  That there shall be selected preceding the first regular meeting of each calendar 
year, from its members, by its members, a chairperson, a vice-chairperson and a secretary, 
who shall serve as officers of the Board for the calendar year and/or until their successors are 
selected and qualify.  In the event that the chairperson is absent, the vice-chair shall serve as 
the pro-tem chairperson.  In the event that both the chairperson and vice-chairperson are 
absent, the secretary shall serve as the pro-tem chairperson and, if necessary, a temporary 
secretary shall be appointed.  The pro-tem chair shall be authorized to conduct the meeting 
and to sign any documents requiring signatures when said documents were the result of any 
action by the Board at the particular meeting. 
 
ARTICLE IV.  That this Board shall generally meet on the second Wednesday of each month 
at such time and place as may be designated by the chairperson, and said meeting shall be 
known as the regular meeting of the Board.  That Board Members shall be expected to make 
all reasonable efforts to attend all regularly scheduled meetings; absences in excess of 1/3 of 
the regularly scheduled meetings in a six-month period will subject the Board Member’s 
appointment to review by the Board.  Special meetings may be called by the chairperson, or a 
majority of the members, when necessary for specific purposes requiring Board action.  A 

16



2 
 

closed session may be held by affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members present in 
accordance with Chapter 21A, Code of Iowa. 
 
ARTICLE V.  That an executive officer shall be employed and shall be known as the Director.  
S/He shall be responsible to serve at the pleasure of the Conservation Board and the Board 
shall evaluate his/her performance annually by the month of December. 
 
There shall be a Deputy Director employed who shall possess all the powers and perform all 
the duties prescribed for the Director in these Bylaws during the absence or disability of the 
Director or in the event of a vacancy in the office of Director; and shall perform such duties and 
exercise such powers as may be prescribed by the Director. 
 
ARTICLE VI.  That the principal duties of the Director shall include: 
 
a. The preparation of the agenda for each regular monthly meeting and to assist the 

chairperson in the functions of the meeting as required. 
 
b. To annually outline and recommend to the Board a budget that includes a program of 

administration, development, maintenance and operation, for each budgetary year, 
including an estimated cost, which shall be presented to the Conservation Board prior to 
submission to the Board of Supervisors.  To present and explain amendments and 
modifications to the annual budget that may occur during the year to the Board prior to 
submission to the budget staff of the Board of Supervisors. 

 
c.  The budget, or periodic budget amendments, as approved by the Conservation Board, shall 

be presented and explained by the director to the Board of Supervisors at each annual 
budget hearing or at periodic budget amendment hearings. 

 
d. S/He shall keep well informed on the current trends, functions, procedures, and 

philosophies in outdoor recreation and environmental education; on the design of park 
facilities and development; and in the preservation and rehabilitation of conservation areas; 
and shall periodically report to the Conservation Board the results of his/her research and 
investigation in these fields. 

 
e. S/He is authorized to deposit in his/her name as the director for the Polk County 

Conservation Board, at a local bank as selected and approved by the Conservation Board, 
miscellaneous monies collected from the operations of all revenue-producing facilities; and 
to draw from said deposit, over his/her signature as the director, or his/her duly appointed 
representatives of the Conservation Board, funds payable to the Polk County Treasurer for 
allocation to the General Fund of the County for the benefit of Polk County Conservation 
Board. 

 
f. S/He shall review and approve all expenditures and is authorized to requisition warrants 

from the County Auditors Office for the payment of duly acknowledged claims.  S/He shall 
submit to the Board monthly financial statements on the status of the conservation budget. 

 
g. As required by statute, s/he shall prepare an annual report covering each fiscal year as 

terminated and include, therein, his/her recommendations for future expansion and 
development. 

17



3 
 

 
h. S/He will develop and maintain long range strategic plans as approved by the Conservation 

Board to provide guidance in the planning and implementation of programs and projects. 
 
ARTICLE VII.  That the Director, with the approval of the Conservation Board, is authorized to 
employ and fix the compensation of such assistants and employees as may be necessary for 
proper and efficient administration, for development of, and for the maintenance and operation 
for such property and facilities as may be acquired by the Conservation Board, and/or 
responsibilities assumed within the framework of statutory authority. The Director is authorized 
to employ seasonal/ intermittent employees as set forth in the Conservation Board’s budget.  
 
ARTICLE VIII.  That the compensation for the Director, his/her assistants and employees, shall 
be determined by the Conservation Board and shall be comparable and commensurate with 
the annual salaries, or hourly wages as established by the Board of Supervisors for similar 
duties and responsibilities as other county officers and employees, when such salaries and 
rates are not in conflict with statutory limitations.  Vacations, sick leaves, holidays and other 
employee benefits shall be in conformity with the regulation as established for other Polk 
County officers and employees. 
 
ARTICLE IX.  That the Director, and any employees as s/he may designate, may be appointed 
peace officers as authorized by Section 350, and within the purview of Section 80B of the 
Code of Iowa. 
 
ARTICLE X.  That any single expenditure, or contract to expend for services, the purchase of 
equipment or material supplies, or to enter into rental agreements of construction contracts, 
shall conform to the following procedures: 
 
a. For the purchase of minor items and to provide for “change”, a petty cash fund and change 

funds may be established not to exceed $50 $100 when authorized by the Director.  Claims 
for reimbursement to the petty cash fund shall be submitted to the County Auditor as 
required and based on receipted amounts of each expenditure. 

 
b. Items of expenditure of $5,000 or more shall, when possible and reasonable, be selected 

from at least three (3) quotations from qualified vendors and approved by the Director.   No 
prior approval is required by the PCCB; however, PCCB ratifies monthly list of expenditures  
at each monthly regular meeting 

 
c. Items of expenditures up to $10,000 shall require only approval of the Director.  No prior 

approval is required by the PCCB; however, PCCB ratifies monthly list of expenditures at 
each monthly regular meeting.   In emergency situations (defined as immediate public 
health and welfare) the Director may spend up to $20,000 as necessary to meet the needs 
of the emergency within 48 hours and inform the Conservation Board of any emergency 
spending as soon as possible. 

 
d. Items of expenditures above $10,000 shall be selected from at least three (3) quotations 

from qualified firms or supplies when applicable and the approval of at least three (3) Board 
Members before purchase.  Members may be polled for approval.  All quotations received 
shall be retained in the files for at least three (3) years. 

 

18



4 
 

e. Contracts or purchases for public improvements as defined by Sections 26.2(3), 73A.1(3) 
and 573.1(4)(2011) shall conform to the requirements of said Chapters 26, 573 and 73A.  

 
f. The Director, or his/her duly appointed representative is authorized and empowered to act 

for the Board in receiving, opening, and recording bids.  A public hearing, as set forth in 
Chapter 26 and 73A, Code of Iowa, must be held at a regular or special meeting of the 
Board for action on said bids. 

 
g. The acquisition of land (including easements) is excluded from the above requirements, but 

Land Purchase Options must be considered by the Conservation Board at a regular or 
special meeting and approved by at least three (3) Board Members for acceptance.  
Procedures for land acquisition shall conform to statutory requirements.   

 
h. The Director is authorized to apply for grants that fit within the mission of the Board. Final 

acceptance of grants awarded to Polk County Conservation will receive approval of the 
Board.  

 
i. The Director is authorized to negotiate mutual and cooperative agreements with final 

approval of agreements receiving approval of the Board. 
 
j. The Director is authorized to sign contractual documents on behalf of the Board, when 

authorized by the Board, with the requirement that such authorization is documented as 
part of the signature. 

 
ARTICLE XI.  That these Bylaws shall be reviewed by the Conservation Board each year at 
the first regular Board meeting in January.  Approval or amendment may be proposed at any 
regular meeting but must be again considered at the next following regular meeting before 
adoption.  Amendments shall require approval of at least three (3) Board Members. 
 
MOTION BY ____________, that these Bylaws as amended, be adopted this February 12, 
2014 by the Polk County Conservation Board. 
 
_____________________________ 
Chair 
 
_____________________________ 
Vice-Chair 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary 
 
_____________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________ 

19



Strategic Plan
J A N U A R Y  2 0 1 4

The Polk County Conservation Board’s mission is to provide the citizens of Polk County with quality outdoor 
recreation, conservation education, and the long-term protection of Polk County’s natural heritage.

20



January 14, 2014

Dear Polk County Citizens and Conservation Supporters:

Polk County Conservation Board proudly presents this 5-Year 

Strategic Plan that reflects the input of Board members, staff, public, 

and regional planning efforts. This plan is intended to be flexible, 

recognizing that adjustments will need to be made in the event that 

new opportunities or issues need to be addressed or unforeseen events 

occur that impact our best laid plans.  

Measurable outcomes will be identified for each strategic priority.  

These outcomes are intended to be aggressive while at the same time 

realistic. One of our primary responsibilities will be to ensure that 

steady progress is made to accomplish these strategic priorities. This 

will be very much a team effort.  

The seven initiatives identified within the plan are environmental 

education, water quality, public awareness, natural areas, outdoor 

recreation, watershed management, and trails. These focus areas, and 

accompanying action steps, will be a high priority for Polk County 

Conservation throughout the duration of this plan. 

Strategic planning is critical in meeting the needs of Polk County, its 

citizens, and our parks, trails, and natural areas for generations to 

come. Questions and comments about this plan can be directed to 

Richard Leopold, Deputy Director, at rich.leopold@polkcountyiowa.gov 

or 515-323-5322.

Sincerely,

Jim Cataldo, 

Chair, Polk County Conservation Board

Richard Leopold, 

Deputy Director, Polk County Conservation Board 

Proud to Announce

21



On December 5 and 6, 2013, the Polk County Conservation Board held 
a strategic planning retreat. At this event, there was focus on strategic 
planning initiatives. These initiatives were the result of a series of meetings 
and interviews with Polk County Board of Supervisors, Polk County 
Conservation Board members, the Great Outdoors Foundation, the Polk 
County Conservation Advisory Committee, Polk County Conservation 
managers and staff, and in cooperation with regional plans such as 
Capital Crossroads and The Tomorrow Plan.

The seven initiatives were ranked in order of importance for the scope of 
this 5-year strategic plan for the Polk County Conservation Board. It should 
be noted that PCCB will continue with programs of existing excellence, 
and this prioritization has largely to do with future need and expansion.

1)  Inventory and monitor water 
quality within areas managed 
by Polk County Conservation to 
track changes in water quality, 
and identify areas of concern 
or priorities while recognizing 
the challenges associated with 
impacting upstream behaviors/
practices.

2)  Educate and inform local 
leaders on natural resource 
issues to promote sustainable 
and respectful environmental 
practices and policies.

3)  Develop a process to identify and 
prioritize natural resource areas 
for acquisitions.

4)  Emphasize passive recreation 
activities that promote improved 
public health in natural 
environments.

5)  Communicate clearly and 
regularly to all interested parties 
on the initiatives funded within 
the Polk County Water and Land 
Legacy bond.

The following are the Top Ten Elements across all seven initiatives based on strong common support shown by the Board. 

6)  Promote a diversity of trails 
including soft surface nature 
trails, interpretive trails, cross-
country ski trails, water trails, and 
multi-use paved trails providing 
opportunities for a variety of 
recreation activities and users.

7)  Demonstrate best practices 
and commitment to improved 
water quality through the 
implementation of Polk County 
Conservation Board projects and 
programs.

8)  Provide direct support to the 
watershed planning and design 
efforts of the Four Mile Creek 
Watershed Management 
Authority including developing 
a vision and long range plan for 
the Four Mile Creek Greenbelt. 
This will include protecting and 
restoring the natural resources 
and hydrologic functions within 
the watershed.

9)  Develop a regional program 
of environmental education 
volunteers and interns 
in partnership with local 
organizations, communities 
and school districts to 
provide additional reach and 
resources for the Polk County 
environmental education 
program.

10/11) Support a regional approach 
to establish and coordinate 
watershed management 
authorities throughout the 
County with emphasis on 
rural watersheds recognizing 
that the watershed often 
comprises multiple units of 
local government.

10/11) Increase public understanding 
and awareness of the benefits 
of watershed management 
through educational and 
interpretive programs and 
materials.

Top Ten Elements

Initiative Summary

Polk County Conservation Board will be using these guidelines in creating a number of 
management plans within the PCCB system, including but not limited to staffing, operations, land-use 

management, recreation, environmental education, and facility / infrastructure planning.

•   Environmental Education

•   Water Quality

•   Public Awareness

•   Natural Areas

•   Outdoor Recreation

•   Watershed Management Authorities

•   Trails

22



GOAL:  Polk County Conservation Board will be a leader to 
provide and expand quality environmental education for all 
ages. 

• Educate and inform local leaders on natural resource issues 
to promote sustainable and respectful environmental 
practices and policies. 

• Develop a regional program of environmental education 
volunteers and interns in partnership with local 
organizations, communities and school districts to provide 
additional reach and resources for the Polk County 
environmental education program. 

• Support the national and state models of the STEM 
initiative (Science, Technology, Engineering, and 
Mathematics) and continue to meet the National Science 
standards.

• Emphasize the use of technology and passive education 
methods in expanding environmental education 
opportunities.

• Support the development of a geographically dispersed 
network of facilities to support providing enhanced 
environmental education programming across the County.

• Continue to support the development of a regional 
coordinated approach to expanding environmental 
education.

• Develop new programs or incorporate into existing 
programs the concepts and benefits of sustainable living 
and public health. 

• Identify and promote standard educational themes 
consistent across providers with the messages tailored to 
local resources and participants 

Initiative Goals

GOAL:  Polk County Conservation Board will be a leader in 
managing for and advocating on behalf of improving water 
quality within Polk County and the State of Iowa. 

• Inventory and monitor water quality within areas managed 
by Polk County Conservation to track changes in water 
quality, and identify areas of concern or priorities while 
recognizing the challenges associated with impacting 
upstream behaviors/practices.  

• Demonstrate best practices and commitment to improved 
water quality through the implementation of Polk County 
Conservation Board projects and programs.

• Promote environmental education programs that inform 
the public on how they can become involved in water 
quality issues and make a difference locally.

• Protect and restore priority greenways or riparian buffer 
areas through acquisitions or easements.

• Accurately and clearly inform the public of local and 
statewide issues regarding water quality and its impact on 
natural resources, wildlife, recreation and public health.

• Assist other communities and private entities through 
technical assistance and guidance.

Environmental Education Water Quality

For each initiative, icons are used to express degree of 
magnitude required to successfully accomplish the initiative 
(over baseline.) These initiatives are in order of priority as well 
as bullets within each initiative are in priority order.

DIFFICULTY TO IMPLEMENT

KEY TO SUCCESS

COST

TIME TO COMPLETE

PERSONNEL 
(existing employees, new employees, contract labor, etc.)

PCC annually presents approximately 1,445 public programs that reach more 
than 32,000 people.

PCC maintains 38+ miles of streambank and 710+ acres of lakes, ponds, 
marshes, and river access in Polk County.

23



GOAL:  Polk County Conservation Board will increase public 
visibility and awareness of programming, the comprehensive 
park system, and current and future initiatives. 

• Communicate clearly and regularly to all interested parties 
on the initiatives funded within the Polk County Water 
and Land Legacy bond.

• Use social media and technology to improve the 
publicizing of programs and facilities being offered.

• Promote increased recognition of Polk County 
Conservation through improved marketing techniques 
including branding/icons/themes.

• Coordinate efforts with partners, volunteers and other 
agencies and communities.

• Expand and enhance the “Family of Parks” program in 
connection with the “Leading You Outdoors” theme. 

Initiative Goals

GOAL:  Polk County Conservation Board will actively work 
to preserve, maintain, and restore natural areas within Polk 
County.

• Develop a process to identify and prioritize natural 
resource areas for acquisitions. 

• Develop criteria-based approach to evaluating inventoried 
natural areas and prioritizing for protection or restoration 
needs.

• Develop natural resource management or restoration 
plans for existing county natural areas and for those areas 
planned for acquisition.

• Inventory existing natural areas within the County.

• Educate private landowners and local communities on 
current natural areas management techniques including 
management of invasive species, use of prescribed 
burning, and mechanical brush removal.

GOAL:  Polk County Conservation Board will actively 
work to provide and expand quality outdoor recreation 
opportunities.  

• Emphasize passive recreation activities that promote 
improved public health in natural environments.

• Establish methodology to track park use and trends 
including the amount of use, types of users, user 
expenditures and user satisfaction to evaluate the benefits 
of programs and facilities being provided.

• Ensure clean safe facilities through ongoing maintenance, 
inspection and replacement.

Outdoor Recreation

Public Awareness

Volunteers contribute 12,500+ hours annually to PCC. More than 23,000 
people receive regular communications via newsletters, emails, Facebook, 
Twitter, Blogger, Pinterest, and YouTube.

Nature News

May – August 2011

P O L K  C O U N T Y  C O N S E R V AT I O N     •     2 0 1 1  N AT U R E  P R O G R A M S  A N D  N E W S   

CONTENTS

PCC News
pg 2-3

Public Programs
pg 4-6

Trips
pg 8-9

Summer Camps
pg 10

Equestrian Center
Calendar

pg 15

Volunteer
Opportunities

pg 11

Map
pg 12

Yearly Calendar
pg 14-15

O.W.L.S. 
Older, Wiser,

Livelier Seniors
pg 16

Guide by Cell: A Success!The Guide by Cell audio tour 2010 pilot project provided valuable data and feedback from park users at Jester Park and Brown’s Woods. Park visitors used their cell phone to call in and listen to more than 3,300 voice prompts. Callers heard information on unique park features, natural history of plants and wildlife and environmental issues. The callers represented area codes from 24 states ranging from New York to California. Seven percent of the callers participated in the voting option at the end of the Guide by Cell messages.
Many park visitors left verbal feedback on the system, such as concern of flooding at Jester Park to downed trees on the Brown’s Woods trail. Several visitors let us know how much they enjoyed the new bird blind and Playscape at Jester Park. Here are a few of the comments visitors left:

CALL: 515 418 9207
PRESS: 1#

PRESS:0#:  TO LEAVE A COMMENT

CELL PHONE AUDIO TOUR

“We really like this audio tour, very glad you did it, we hope it keeps going, very informative, we have just been wandering around, it is really cool, high tech.”

“This is very awesome and helpful thank you to whoever put this together.”

Due to the success of this pilot REAP-CEP grant, the Guide by Cell program will be expanded into other Polk County parks and recreational trails. This expansion is possible due to funding from the Great Outdoors Fund. When visiting Polk County Parks this year, turn on your cell phone and give us a call. It’s easy! It’s fun! It’s informative! Hear what you have been missing and give us your feedback!

PCC offers 13,000+ acres of park land which consists of 3,300+ acres of 
woodland, 2,000+ acres of wetland, 4,700+ acres of prairie, and 250+ acres 
of manicured green space.

For each initiative, icons are used to express degree of 
magnitude required to successfully accomplish the initiative 
(over baseline.) These initiatives are in order of priority as well 
as bullets within each initiative are in priority order.

DIFFICULTY TO IMPLEMENT

KEY TO SUCCESS

COST

TIME TO COMPLETE

PERSONNEL 
(existing employees, new employees, contract labor, etc.)

Natural Areas

24



• Continue to evaluate the quality of programs and facilities 
through the use of local public surveys, public meetings, 
advisory groups and neighborhood park friends groups.

• Maintain updated master plans for all parks and areas.

• Partner in development and management of 1 or 2 
regional greenbelts.

• Support the addition of two regional parks in response 
to projected regional growth and areas projected to be 
underserved for access to parks and natural areas.

GOAL:  Polk County Conservation Board will provide 
support in the development, planning, and project 
implementation of Watershed Management Authorities. 

      

• Provide direct support to the watershed planning 
and design efforts of the Four Mile Creek Watershed 
Management Authority including developing a vision and 
long range plan for the Four Mile Creek Greenbelt. This 
will include protecting and restoring the natural resources 
and hydrologic functions within the watershed.

• Support a regional approach to establish and coordinate 
watershed management authorities throughout the 
County with emphasis on rural watersheds recognizing 
that the watershed often comprises multiple units of local 
government. 

• Increase public understanding and awareness of the 
benefits of watershed management through educational 
and interpretive programs and materials.

 
• Provide technical advice to established watershed 

management authorities in developing watershed 
improvement plans and identifying priority projects.

PCC manages 20 parks and trails, which includes 350+ campsites, 
20 park shelters, 9 playgrounds, 7 major trails, a golf course, and an 
equestrian center.

Initiative Goals

Watershed Management

• Work with agencies and communities in identifying grants 
and funding sources for the implementation of projects 
identified in watershed improvement plans.

GOAL:  Polk County Conservation Board will be a major 
supporter in the development and maintenance of trails with 
an emphasis on connecting communities. 

• Promote a diversity of trails including soft surface nature 
trails, interpretive trails, cross-country ski trails, water trails, 
and multi-use paved trails providing opportunities for a 
variety of recreation activities and users. 

• Support a regional approach to planning, promoting and 
advocating for the development and maintenance of the 
Central Iowa Trails Network.

• Work with local organizations and agencies to develop 
alternative methods for funding trail maintenance and 
improvements. 

• Work as a major supporter within the Central Iowa 
Trails Network to actively support partnerships with the 
communities involved.

• Set the standard for safe and efficient operations and 
maintenance of trails including defining minimum 
maintenance standards.

Trails

PCC currently manages and maintains more than 35 miles of paved trails and 
37 miles of natural surface trails.

PCC is an active partner within many sensitive watersheds in Polk County such 
as Four Mile Creek, Easter Lake, Camp Creek, Beaver Creek, Des Moines River, 
and Raccoon River.

25



GRANT NET

PROJECT NAME EXPENDITURES REVENUES RECEIVABLES EXPENDITURE

GAY LEA WILSON TRAIL CONNECTION (DSM-ANKENY) 827,441$           5,681$           632,840$        188,920$         

CBG SHAW PROPERTY ACQUISITION 689,500$           -$                    258,860$        430,640$         

JESTER PARK CABINS 492,511$           -$                    -$                     492,511$         

CVT CONNECTOR-BROADWAY TO GLW 95,536$              -$                    -$                     95,536$           

CBG WELL REPLACEMENT 73,509$              -$                    -$                     73,509$           

CBG OBSERVATION DECK 72,560$              -$                    -$                     72,560$           

JP EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE BLDG RELOCATION 227,294$           -$                    -$                     227,294$         

JP EQUESTRIAN CENTER IMPROVEMENTS 10,671$              -$                    -$                     10,671$           

FOUR-MILE CREEK BANK STABILIZATION 19,652$              -$                    -$                     19,652$           

JP CONSERVATION CENTER 178,174$           1,848$           -$                     176,326$         

CBG MASTER PLAN 52,298$              -$                    -$                     52,298$           

ACKELSON TRAIL PHASE I (fkA EL Trail Phase I) 1,034,965$        -$                    -$                     1,034,965$     

ACKELSON TRAIL PHASE II (fka EL Trail Phase II) 114,181$           -$                    -$                     114,181$         

ACKELSON TRAIL PHASE III (fka EL Trail Phase III) 555$                   -$                    -$                     555$                

FDM POND IMPROVEMENTS & SEDIMENT BASIN 185,908$           -$                    -$                     185,908$         

FDM PARK IMPR-SHELTER/TRAILS/PENINSULA 49,463$              -$                    -$                     49,463$           

JP CAMP AREA #2 ELECTRIC UPGRADE 280,980$           -$                    -$                     280,980$         

HTT CONNECTOR TO GLW (fka Neal Smith) 9,800$                -$                    -$                     9,800$             

TM CAMP CREEK STABILIZATION 154,974$           -$                    -$                     154,974$         

TM PARK IMPROVEMENTS 24,839$              -$                    -$                     24,839$           

YB PARK IMPROVEMENTS 32,085$              -$                    -$                     32,085$           

TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS ALL AREAS 23,228$              -$                    -$                     23,228$           

JP ENTRANCE RELOCATION 329,268$           -$                    -$                     329,268$         

CBG WOOSLEY PROPERTY-NO SALE APPRAISAL ONLY 1,200$                -$                    -$                     1,200$             

CBG MENDENHALL PROPERTY ACQUISITION 676,267$           -$                    -$                     676,267$         

CXT VAULT TOILETS 65,341$              -$                    -$                     65,341$           

CBG WETLANDS DESIGN 65,121$              -$                    -$                     65,121$           

YB DAM REPAIRS 89,250$              -$                    -$                     89,250$           

BEAVER CREEK PROPERTY ACQUISITION 93,469$              -$                    -$                     93,469$           

ROAD & PARKING LOT RESURFACING ALL AREAS 195,951$           -$                    -$                     195,951$         

CAMP CREEK-MILLER/RIST PROPERTY ACQUISITION 342,197$           -$                    -$                     342,197$         

CBG AIRPORT 16 PROPERTY ACQUISITION 75,588$              -$                    -$                     75,588$           

YB ALITZ PROPERTY ACQUISITION 298,000$           -$                    -$                     298,000$         

CBG FREELAND PROPERTY ACQUISITION 204,437$           -$                    -$                     204,437$         

CBG AIRPORT 60 PROPERTY ACQUISITION 238,687$           -$                    -$                     238,687$         

CBG EVERLY PROPERTY-NO SALE APPRAISAL ONLY 1,200$                -$                    -$                     1,200$             

BROWN'S WOODS TRAILHEAD IMPROVEMENTS 26,915$              -$                    -$                     26,915$           

YB PREIST PROPERTY ACQUISITION 1,500$                -$                    -$                     1,500$             

MISC MINOR IMPROVEMENTS 22,893$              -$                    -$                     22,893$           

CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES 146,171$           -$                    -$                     146,171$         

TM POND & TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS 66,251$              -$                    -$                     66,251$           

TM OVERLIN PROPERTY ACQUISITION 1,250$                -$                    -$                     1,250$             

MALLY'S PARK STREAMBANK STABLILIZATION 400$                   -$                    -$                     400$                

PCWLL PUBLIC AWARENESS 638$                   -$                    -$                     638$                

NATURAL AREAS RESTORATION 8,481$                -$                    -$                     8,481$             

JP CAMP STORE 1,050$                -$                    -$                     1,050$             

TOTALS 7,601,650$        7,530$           891,700$        6,702,420$     

PCWLL NET EXPENDITURES AS OF :

December 31, 2013

26



                                                        

ACKELSON AND EASTER LAKE SPINE RECREATIONAL TRAILS CONSTRUCTION AND 

MAINTENANCE CHAPTER 28E AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN  

                                                    THE CITY OF DES MOINES                       

AND  

THE POLK COUNTY CONSERVATION BOARD 

 

          THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into, by and between the City of Des Moines 

and the Polk County Conservation Board.  Definitions as used hereinafter: 

 “City” shall mean the City of Des Moines. 

“County Conservation Board” shall mean the Polk County Conservation Board. 

            “City Trails” shall mean a trail segment on City owned property (Ewing Park)  that 

connects from Indianola Avenue to the Mark C. Ackelson Multi-Use Recreational Trail 

around Easter Lake and a portion of the Easter Lake Spine Multi-Use Recreational Trail 

on City owned property, as described in Attachment A  and shown in Attachment E. 
            “City Trail Improvements” shall mean those Trails improvements described in 

Attachments A and D and shown in Attachment E. 

            “Trails” shall mean Phases I, II and III of the Mark C. Ackelson Multi-Use Recreational 

Trail, including the City Trails. 

1. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the Provisions of Chapter 28E, Code of Iowa

2. This Agreement shall become effective upon acceptance by the parties. 

 

(2013). This Agreement shall consist of 23 pages and Attachments A, B, C, D, E, F and 

G, which shall be considered a part of this Agreement.   

3. The purpose of this Agreement is listed in Attachment A. 
4. Duties of County Conservation Board are listed in Attachment B. 
5. Duties of the City are listed in Attachment C. 
6. Detailed cost estimate and Trail Improvements are listed in Attachment D. 
7. Attachment E is a map showing the location of the PCCB Trails Project and City Trails. 

8. Attachments F and G detail insurance and indemnification requirements. 

9. No separate legal or administrative entity is created by this Agreement.  No real or 

personal property will be purchased in the performance of this Agreement. 

10 County Conservation Board shall be the lead agency for carrying out the terms of this 

Agreement. 

11.  The City of Des Moines City Engineer during the construction phase, and the City of Des 

Moines Park and Recreation Director thereafter, shall administer performance of this 

27



 2  

Agreement for the City of Des Moines.  The County Conservation Board Director shall 

administer performance of this Agreement for the County Conservation Board. 

12.    The City recognizes that the trail owned and operated by County Conservation Board 

which encircles the perimeter of Easter Lake within Easter Lake Park has been named 

the “Mark C. Ackelson Trail” by the County Conservation Board.  The City agrees that, 

upon its acceptance by the City Council of those Trail Improvements encircling the 

western edge of Easter Lake, the City Trail segment constructed under this Agreement 

connecting to the County Conservation Board’s Mark C. Ackelson Trail, and the existing 

trail segment in Ewing Park connecting to Indianola Avenue shall be designated by the 

City as the “Mark C. Ackelson Trail”. 

13.      The County Conservation Board intends to be responsible for the construction of the City 

Trail Improvements as part of its construction projects for Phase 2 - Mark C. Ackelson 

Trail, and Phase 3 - Mark C. Ackelson Trail and Easter Lake Spine Trail, as shown in 

Attachment E (collectively “the PCCB Trails Project”).    (Phase 1 of the Mark C. 

Ackelson Trail project is entirely on Polk County owned property and is not included in 

this Agreement.)  

           The total estimated cost of the PCCB Trails Project   is approximately $2,930,000. The 

PCCB Trail Project includes $897,665 in Federal Surface Transportation Program 

Enhancement Funds and Transportation Alternatives Program funds from the Des 

Moines Area Metropolitan Planning Organization which will be subject to a separate 

federal funding agreement between the County Conservation Board and the Iowa 

Department of Transportation (“DOT”).  Pursuant to the DOT Agreements, the County 

Conservation Board is designated to act as lead organization in contracting for 

construction of the PCCB Trail Project and shall ensure that all of the DOT Agreement 

grant conditions are met.    

          Costs for the PCCB Trail Project shall be shared by the parties as follows: 

      Dollars   

Federal STP-E & TAP through MPO  $897,665                         

City of Des Moines    $331,000 (for City Trails Improvements)  

Polk County Conservation Board  $ 1,701,335                          

 

Total Estimated Construction Cost             $2,930,000  

         Change orders regarding the portion of the City Trails Improvements constructed 

on City-owned property must be mutually approved by County Conservation Board  and 

the City.  Any additional costs from change orders shall be assumed by the County 

Conservation Board without any additional contribution by the City, except that the cost 

28



 3  

of change orders requested solely by the City on City–owned property  shall be paid by 

the City.    

            The City’s contribution to construction of the City Trails Improvements and the 

PCCB Trails Project shall not exceed $331,000 and County Conservation board shall be 

solely responsible for funding any costs exceeding the Total Estimated Construction 

Cost or subsequent change order amounts.  If additional Federal, State, Local Grant, or 

Private Funds are obtained for the City Trail Improvements or the PCCB Trails Project, 

resulting in additional local funds being required, County Conservation Board agrees to 

assume 100% of the additional local fund requirement.   

14. This Agreement shall be in effect for a term of twenty (20) years from the date of 

acceptance of the City Trails by the City of Des Moines City Council. Either duly 

recognized party to this Agreement may notify the other of its desire to terminate this 

Agreement by sending written notice of such desire to terminate, specifying the reasons 

for termination, at least sixty days prior to the effective date of such requested 

termination.  Both parties must concur in the termination in order for such notice to be in 

effect.  Notice shall be sent to the governing body of the other party at their principal 

place of doing business by registered mail.  The termination of this Agreement shall not 

relieve any party to this Agreement of any obligations or liability arising during the term 

of this Agreement.  

15. In the event of a breach by any entity of this Agreement, that breach shall not be 

considered to affect any remaining terms or conditions of this Agreement.  If any terms 

or conditions of this Agreement are held to be invalid or illegal, those remaining terms or 

conditions shall not be construed to be affected. 

16. This is the entire Agreement between both duly recognized parties and it may be 

amended only upon the agreement of both parties and only in writing. 

17. The parties shall approve this Agreement by resolution or motion of their respective 

Board or Council, which shall authorize the execution of the Agreement.  It will then be 

filed in the office of the Iowa Secretary of State, in accordance with Chapter 28E of the 

Code of Iowa.

18.     The City and County Conservation Board shall not, by reason of this Agreement, be 

obligated to defend, hold harmless or indemnify the other from any liability to third 

parties, from any occupational injuries, or from and against any liability, loss, damage, 

claim or lawsuit asserted against them or any of them arising out of or in any way 

connected with this Agreement. To the extent permitted by law, the City and County 

Conservation Board agree to purchase and maintain insurance and to waive subrogation 

  This Agreement shall become effective when filed in the office of the 

Iowa Secretary of State and shall remain in effect unless terminated as provided herein.  

29



 4  

against one another in accordance with those provisions included in Attachment F.   
County Conservation Board agrees to require all contractors working on Trail 

Improvements to provide the insurance coverages and indemnification requirements 

described in Attachment G.   

19.   Except as otherwise specified, all notices, consents, approvals, requests and other 

communications (hereinafter referred to as “Notices”) required or permitted under this 

Agreement shall be given in writing and mailed by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, addressed as follows: 

            If to the City of Des Moines: 

 City of Des Moines 

 Park and Recreation Department 

 3226 University Avenue 

 Des Moines, IA  50311 

 Attention:  Benjamin R. Page 

 

              If to the Des Moines City Engineer: 

  Engineering Department 

  City of Des Moines 

  400 Robert D Ray Drive 

         Des Moines, IA, 50309-1891   

                          Attention: Jeb E. Brewer, P.E., City Engineer 

  

            If to the POLK COUNTY CONSERVATION BOARD: 

 Polk County Conservation Board 

 11407 NW Jester Park Drive 

                  Granger, Iowa   

                  Attention:  Dennis Parker, Director     

 

All Notices shall be deemed given on the day of mailing. Any party to this Agreement 

may change its address for the receipt of Notices at any time by giving notice thereof to 

the others as herein provided. Any Notice given by a party hereunder must be signed by 

an authorized representative of such party. 

30



 5  

 

EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT      

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Polk County Conservation Board has caused this 

Agreement to be executed in three (3) separate counterparts, each of which shall be considered 

an original. 

 

 

Executed by the Polk County Conservation Board 

 

_____ day of __________ 2014  

Polk County Conservation Board 

 

 

Attest_________________________          _______________________________ 

              Jim Cataldo, Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
   ) ss: 
COUNTY OF POLK ) 
 
 On this _____ day of _____________________, 2014, before me, a Notary Public in 
and for said County, personally appeared  JIM CATALDO and _______________ to me 
personally known, and who being duly sworn, did say that they are the CHAIR and 
______________________  of the Polk County Conservation Board, created and existing under 
the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of 
said  Board, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said Board by 
authority and resolution of its Board as contained in Resolution No.______ adopted  on 
_________, 2014, and said JIM CATALDO and ____________________       acknowledged 
said instrument to be the free act and deed of said Board by it voluntarily executed.   
        
                                                                                 _________________________________ 
       Notary Public for Iowa 

31



 6  

 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT      
 
 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the City of Des Moines has caused this Agreement to be 
executed in three (3) separate counterparts, each of which shall be considered an original. 
 
 
 
Executed by the City of Des Moines, Iowa   
 
_____ day of __________ 2014   
         
 
 
CITY OF DES MOINES, IOWA   ATTEST:   
 
_________________________   _______________________________ 
T. M. Franklin Cownie, Mayor                 Diane Rauh, City Clerk  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
_______________________________ 
Ann DiDonato, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA ) 
   ) ss: 
COUNTY OF POLK ) 
 
 On this _____ day of _____________________, 2014 before me, a Notary Public in and 
for said County, personally appeared T. M. Franklin Cownie and Diane Rauh to me personally 
known, and who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively 
of the City of Des Moines, Iowa, a Municipal Corporation, created and existing under the laws of 
the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said 
Municipal Corporation, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said 
Municipal Corporation by authority and resolution of its City Council, as contained in the 
Resolution adopted under Roll Call No. 14 _____,and said Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged 
said instrument to be the free act and deed of said Municipal Corporation by it voluntarily 
executed.   
       _________________________________ 
       Notary Public for Iowa 

32



 7  

 
 

PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS AND JOINT RESPONSIBILITIES 

ATTACHMENT A  

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions of the 

relationship between the City and the County Conservation Board for the construction and 

maintenance of the City Trails.  

Phase 2 of the PCCB Trails Project, consists of a portion of the Mark C. Ackelson Trail 

located in Ewing Park, extending from the terminus of the existing City trail located 350 feet 

from the eastern edge of the box culvert under Indianola Avenue, easterly along the northern 

portion of the western end of Easter Lake a distance of 1785 feet, to the Ewing Park and Easter 

Lake Park boundary line. Phase 3 of the PCCB Trails Project consists of two segments.  The 

first segment is another portion of the Mark C. Ackelson Trail located in Ewing Park, connecting 

from Phase 1 in Ewing Park, south over the western edge of Easter Lake, and turning east to 

the Ewing Park and Easter Lake Park boundary line.  The total estimated length is 1700 feet.   

The second segment is a portion of the Easter Lake Spine Trail that will be constructed 

on City-owned property managed by the Stormwater Utility Division, generally located north of 

and terminating at East Payton Avenue.  This trail is estimated to be approximately 480 feet in 

length.   

City Trails location and design shall be subject to the prior written approval of the City 

Engineer and City Park and Recreation Director.  

           Upon completion of the City Trail Improvements, the County Conservation Board, at its 

sole cost, and in accordance with standards mutually agreed to by the County Conservation 

Board  Director and the City of Des Moines Park and Recreation Director, shall be responsible 

for picking up litter, installing and maintaining trail signage, mowing, trimming grass and trees, 

and other landscape maintenance within 10 feet on each side of the Trails.  The removal of 

snow from the Trails is not anticipated during the phased construction period.  The Directors of 

the Des Moines Park and Recreation Department and the County Conservation Board may 

mutually agree, by written addendum to this Agreement, at a future date that snow removal will 

be provided by the County Conservation Board. 

City Trail closures, including those due to emergencies or maintenance operations, shall 

be made by mutual decision of the City Park and Recreation Director and the County 

Conservation Board.  In the event that, in the reasonable opinion of the County Conservation 

Board  Director, an immediate closure is required due to emergency or to protect the public 

health, welfare or safety, so that there is no time to contact the Park and Recreation Director or 

to receive his consent to such closure, the County Conservation Board shall take all appropriate 

33



 8  

action to close the City Trail and will provide the City Park and Recreation Director with as much 

advance notice as possible. In the event of emergency closure without mutual consent of the  

Director and the Park and Recreation Director, the parties shall mutually consent to the length of 

time and the City Trail area of such closure.  If the parties fail to come to a mutual agreement on 

the length and area of an emergency trail closure, the City shall have the sole right to determine 

when the City Trails are open and shall be responsible for the management of the closed 

portion of the City Trail during the time that it is closed to the public.  

The County Conservation Board shall be responsible for managing Trail usage by the 

public, including enforcement of City Trail rules on the City Trails within Ewing Park.  County 

Conservation Board shall have the right to permit events on the City Trails within Ewing Park, 

subject to the City Park and Recreation Director’s prior approval.  The Park and Recreation 

Director may object to and veto any event which conflicts with City rules or policy. The County 

Conservation Board agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City, for any claims arising out 

of use of the City Trails for which the County Conservation Board has permitted pursuant to 

Exhibit F.  County Conservation Board  shall require all event permittees and event participants 

to sign a Release and Waiver in a form approved by the City.  The City of Des Moines 

ordinances and park rules, including Des Moines Municipal Code Section 74-115 Multi-use 

Recreational Trails, shall apply to the portion of the City Trails within Ewing Park and on City 

owned property, with the exception of 74-115(d) Hours of Permitted Use to the extent that the 

City Trail in Ewing Park  may open and close with the hours of Easter Lake Park as set forth by 

the County Conservation Board.  County Conservation Board may set and retain the fees for 

event permits for use of the City Trail within Ewing Park. 

The City and County Conservation Board shall be jointly responsible for all major City 

Trails repairs (i.e. those with a total design and repair cost of over $25,000 per project).   County 

Conservation Board shall be solely responsible for all minor City Trails repairs (i.e. those with a 

total design and repair cost of up to and including $25,000 per project).     

The City and County Conservation Board shall each continue to own their underlying 

real property.  Upon completion and acceptance by the Des Moines City Council pursuant to 

resolution, the City of Des Moines will have ownership of all City Trail Improvements.   

         The parties agree that upon execution of this Agreement, County Conservation Board 

shall be obligated to proceed toward the construction of the PCCB Trails Project, including the 

City Trails Improvements portion, in accordance with the terms of the DOT Agreement(s).  

          The parties recognize that, pursuant to the DOT Agreement(s), County Conservation 

Board will be required to advertise for competitive bids for the construction of the PCCB Trails 

Project, including the City Trails Improvements portion, receive and open the bids, and make a 

recommendation to the Polk County Conservation Board regarding the award of the contract for 

34



 9  

construction of the Trails project to the lowest responsible, responsive bidder.  Under the DOT 

Agreement, County Conservation Board is then required to award the contract for construction 

of the Trails project to the lowest responsible, responsive bidder.    

        Pursuant to Iowa Code (2013) Chapters 331, 38, and 350 the Polk County Conservation 

Board shall hold a public hearing regarding approval of: (1) the plans and specifications, form of 

contract documents and the Engineer’s estimate of the cost for the improvements and bid 

security; (2) the designation of the lowest responsible, responsive bidder and cost; (3) bid 

acceptance; and (4) award of the contract for the Trails project.  

. 

                    

 

 

35



 10  

 

 Duties of Polk County Conservation Board  

ATTACHMENT B 

 

The following duties shall apply for the PCCB Trails Project, including the City Trails 

Project.   County Conservation Board shall act as lead agency for this project and shall be 

responsible for providing all planning, concept development, preliminary engineering design 

services, survey, right of way design services, right of way acquisition services, contract 

administration, construction survey, and construction administration/inspection for the 

construction of this project at no cost.   County Conservation Board will be responsible for 

maintenance and trail management of the City Trails as described in this Agreement 

           Upon completion of the design of the City Trail Improvements,  County Conservation 

Board shall submit the final design documents for the Trail Improvements, including the final 

plans and specifications for construction and the cost estimate therefore, to the City for review 

and approval by the City Engineer. County Conservation Board shall not proceed to procure 

bids for construction of any element of the City Trail Improvements until the design documents 

have been approved by the City Engineer.   County Conservation Board agrees to notify the 

City of the bid opening date for said City Trail Improvements, such notice to be given not less 

than 2 business days prior thereto.  The City may assign a representative to attend such bid 

opening. 

 County Conservation Board shall award the contract for construction of the Trail Improvements 

to the lowest responsible, responsive bidder.     

            Upon completion and acceptance of by the City of the portion of the City Trail which is 

part of Phase 2 of the PCCB Trail Project, County Conservation Board shall invoice the City for 

payment of $331,000 as the City’s share of costs for the City Trail per Attachment A.   Such 

payment shall be made within 30 days of receipt from County Conservation Board of an invoice 

for this amount.   In the event that the Easter Lake Spine Trail segment of Phase 3 of the PCCB 

Trail Project is not completed by December 31, 2020, County Conservation Board shall 

promptly reimburse the City $331,000. County Conservation Board shall, within 7 days after its 

execution of the construction contract for Phase 2 and also for Phase 3 of the PCCB Trails 

Project, forward to the City a copy of the construction contract for the Project and copies of the 

contractor’s performance bond and certificates of insurance.                      

            County Conservation Board agrees to cooperate with and to take all necessary action to 

assure compliance with the terms of the DOT Agreements. 

              County Conservation Board shall be responsible for the following construction 

management services: 

36



 11  

           1.   Following the DOT project development process. 

            2. Upon approval of the plans and specifications by the City, undertaking the 

procurement by competitive bidding of a contract for the construction of the City Trail 

Improvements, including the preparation of cost estimate and contract documents, and to make 

all publications and hold all hearings as required by Iowa Code Chapters 38 and 331 for the 

award of public improvement construction contracts. 

            3. Require the contractor to obtain, and to maintain in continuous effect, the insurance 

coverages described in Attachment G and the performance, maintenance, and payment bond 

as specified in the contract documents.  

            4. The processing of payments for all permits, fees, and costs, providing qualified 

personnel and inspection testing, processing progress payment requests, and withholding 

therefrom the 5% retainage required pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 573. 

 5. Approve contractor requests for time extensions? 

            6.     Maintain all project documents and records for the mandatory 3 year retention 

period from the date of final payment for inspection and auditing by the parties and any other 

authorized governmental agency. 

                                     7. Receiving approval of all appropriate City boards and commissions and obtaining 

all required City of Des Moines permits. 

       8.  Ensuring that the design is in compliance with the requirements of the Americans 

with Disability Act (ADA) and implementing rules and regulations and requiring contractors to 

construct the City Trail Improvements in compliance with the ADA. 

     9. When a contractor requests final payment for the construction of any separate 

element of the City Trail Improvements, the County Conservation Board shall arrange for a final 

inspection of such improvements and shall inform the City in writing of the date and time 

thereof.  The Project Engineer designated by the County Conservation Board shall conduct a 

final inspection and develop a punch list of items for completion, if any, and the Project Engineer 

shall certify that the Trail Improvements have been constructed in substantial conformance with 

the plans and specifications, design documents and contract documents. The Project Engineer 

shall inform the City in writing of the date and time of the final inspection at least 7 days prior to 

the inspection. The Project Engineer shall be solely responsible for developing the punch list of 

work items for completion, and shall in his or her sole discretion determine when such items 

have been completed. Upon determination that construction of the improvements have been 

completed, the Project Engineer shall give written notice of project completion to the City and 

County Conservation Board, therein declaring and certifying that the improvements have been 

completed and constructed in substantial conformance with the plans and specifications 

recommending final acceptance of the improvements by the City  for the City Trails. 

37



 12  

 

Duties of the City of Des Moines  

ATTACHMENT C 

      

Upon completion and acceptance by the City Council of the City Trail portion of Phase 2 

of the PCCB Trails Project, and upon receipt of an invoice from Polk County Conservation 

Board, the City shall provide its share of the project costs, which is $331,000, to the County 

Conservation Board.  

          The City agrees to provide a qualified representative to attend and participate in the final 

inspections of the City Trail Improvements. 

In the event that  the City objects to the County’s designated Project Engineer’s 

recommendation to accept the construction of the City Trail improvements as complete, City 

shall notify County Conservation Board of its objection in writing not less than 15 days after 

receipt of the notice of project completion, therein identifying the nature of its objection. If the 

objection cannot be resolved within 60 days thereafter, any party may cause the matter to be 

submitted to binding arbitration. 

 The Des Moines City Engineer shall be responsible for determining and recommending 

to the Des Moines City Council when the City Trail Improvements have been completed and 

whether to accept the City Trail Improvements as complete. The Des Moines City Council shall 

have sole discretion in accepting the City Trail improvements as complete. 

After the City Engineer has concurred with the Project Engineer that the City Trail 

Improvements have been completed in substantial conformance with the approved plans and 

specifications, the City agrees to accept ownership of the City Trail Improvements constructed 

under this Agreement.  Acceptance of ownership of the City Trail Improvements shall be subject 

to; (1) certification by the Project Engineer that all of the improvements have been built in 

substantial compliance with the plans and specifications approved by the City; (2) 

documentation by the Project Engineer that all construction contracts have been paid in full, and 

any acceptance by the Polk County Board of Supervisors, if necessary, and Polk County 

Conservation Board; (3)  acceptance for maintenance by the County Conservation Board; and 

(4) acceptance by the City that the project has been completed in substantial compliance with 

the plans and specifications approved by them. Such acceptance shall occur by resolution by 

the City Council.   

 

 

 

 

38



 13  

 

 

ATTACHMENT D  

Detailed Estimate of Costs for City Trails Improvements and Description of City Trail 

Improvements 

 

The City Trails Improvements will consist of a 10 to 12-foot wide multi-use trail, designed in 

accordance with American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 

(AASHTO), Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities, 2012, 4th Edition and constructed of 

6” PCC.  All trail signage shall be in conformance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 

Devices (MUTCD). 

39



 14  

 

40



 15  

 

 

 

 

41



 16  

 

 

ATTACHMENT E 

 
 

42



 17  

 

43



 18  

                                                        ATTACHMENT F 
 

STANDARD INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 
(Polk County Conservation Board and City of Des Moines) 

 
1.  GENERAL 
 
The City of Des Moines, Iowa and Polk County Conservation Board shall each purchase and 
maintain insurance to protect itself throughout the duration of this Agreement.  The City of Des 
Moines, Iowa may use a self-insurance/excess insurance program for meeting the insurance 
requirements below.  Insurance shall be provided by an insurance company(ies), “admitted” and 
“nonadmitted” to do business in the State of Iowa, having no less than an A.M. Best Rating of 
“B+”.   All policies shall be written on a per occurrence basis, not a claims-made basis.  The City 
of Des Moines, Iowa and Polk County Conservation Board Iowa shall submit Certificates of 
Insurance or Letters of Self-insurance/Excess Insurance to one another confirming coverage 
prior to Agreement execution or commencement of work and/or services included in this 
Agreement. 
 
2.  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
A.  WORKER’S COMPENSATION & EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY INSURANCE

 

: The City 
of Des Moines, Iowa and Polk County Conservation Board shall procure and maintain during the 
life of this Agreement, Worker’s Compensation Insurance, including Employer’s Liability 
Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Iowa.  The coverage limits 
shall include $500,000 each accident for Bodily Injury by Accident, $500,000 each accident for 
Bodily Injury by Disease, and $500,000 policy limit for Bodily Injury by Disease.   

This requirement is waived if, under the law as stated in Chapter 85 of the Code of Iowa, any of 
the above is not required to carry such coverage or has been approved by the State of Iowa’s 
Insurance Commissioner’s Office to self-insure this coverage. 
 
B.  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

 

:  The City of Des Moines, Iowa and 
Polk County Conservation Board shall procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement, 
Commercial General Liability insurance on a per occurrence basis with limits of liability not less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate combined single limit, Personal 
Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage.  Coverage shall include the following extensions:  
(a) Contractual Liability, (b) Premises and Operations, (c) Products and Completed Operations, 
(d) Independent Contractors Coverage, (e) Personal and Advertising Injury and (f) deletion of 
Explosion, Collapse and Underground (XCU), where applicable.   

Coverage shall be no less comprehensive and no more restrictive than the coverage provided by 
a standard form Commercial General Liability Policy (ISO CG 0001, Ed 07/98 with standard 
exclusions “a” through “o” or any subsequent ISO equivalent or a non-ISO equivalent form).   
 
C.  AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE:  The City of Des Moines, Iowa and Polk 
County Conservation Board shall procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement, 
Automobile Liability Insurance with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 
combined single limit including Bodily Injury and Property Damage.  Coverage shall include all 
owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles.   

44



 19  

 
D.  UMBRELLA/EXCESS INSURANCE

 

:  The General Liability and Automobile Liability 
Insurance requirements above may be satisfied with a combination of primary and 
Umbrella/Excess Insurance.  The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall also be written on a per 
occurrence basis. 

E.  SUBCONTRACTORS

 

:  The City of Des Moines, Iowa and Polk County Conservation 
Board shall require that any of its agents and subcontractors who perform work and/or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement meet the same insurance requirements as are 
required of the Party.  The option of self-insurance is not extended to subcontractors. 

F.  PROOF OF INSURANCE

 

:  Each Party shall provide to all other Parties to this Agreement 
either a Certificate(s) of Insurance utilizing the latest version of the ACORD form or a Letter of 
Self-insurance/Excess Insurance (as allowed in “1” above) evidencing all required insurance 
coverage as provided in A through D.  The Certificate(s) of Insurance or Letter of Self-Insurance 
shall specify under “Description of Operations/ Locations/ Vehicle/Special Items”:  The title of 
the Agreement.  

3.  WAIVER OF SUBROGATION 
 
A.  WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

 

:  To the extent permitted by law, the City of Des Moines, 
Iowa and Polk County Conservation Board hereby release one another, their respective elected 
and appointed officials, its agents, employees and volunteers and other working on their behalf, 
from and against any and all liability or responsibility to each other or anyone claiming through 
or under the others by way of subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property 
caused by fire or any other casualty and for any loss due to occupational injury.  This provision 
shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect to loss or damage arising out of  
this Agreement.  The policies of insurance of each shall contain a clause or endorsement to the 
effect that such release shall not adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of 
each to recover thereunder. 

4.  INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS                                              
 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Polk County Conservation Board agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless the City of Des Moines, Iowa,  its elected and appointed officials, employees and 
volunteers and others working on behalf of the City against any and all claims, demands, suits, or 
loss, including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for any damages which 
may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City, its elected and appointed 
officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of the City, including  by 
reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damages, including loss 
of use thereof, which arise out of the negligence of Polk County Conservation Board, its elected 
and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of Polk County 
Conservation Board arising from or with respect to its fulfilling its obligation under this 
Agreement.  This requirement shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 

45



 20  

 
ATTACHMENT  G 

 
 INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS – STANDARD MAJOR 

(Construction Contractor:  Mark C. Ackelson and Easter Lake Spine Multi-use Trail) 
 

1. GENERAL 
 

The construction contractor (“Contractor”) shall purchase and maintain insurance to protect the 
Contractor, City of Des Moines, Iowa (“CITY”) and Polk County Conservation Board (“COUNTY”) 
throughout the duration of this Contract.  Said insurance shall be provided by insurance companies 
“admitted” or “nonadmitted” to do business in the State of Iowa having no less than an A. M. Best 
Rating of “B+.”  All policies shall be written on an occurrence basis and in form and amounts 
satisfactory to the CITY.  Certificates of Insurance confirming adequate insurance coverage shall be 
submitted to the CITY and COUNTY prior to Contract execution or commencement of work and/or 
services. 

 
2. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. WORKER’S COMPENSATION & EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY INSURANCE

 

:  The 
Contractor shall procure and maintain Worker’s Compensation Insurance, including Employer’s 
Liability Coverage, both written with State of Iowa statutory limits.  Waiver of Subrogation 
in favor of the CITY and COUNTY is required. 

B. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

 

:  The Contractor shall procure and 
maintain Commercial General Liability insurance on an occurrence basis with limits of liability 
not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate combined single limit covering 
Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage.  Coverage shall include:  (a) Contractual 
Liability, (b) Premises and Operations, (c) Products and Completed Operations, (d) Independent 
Contractors Coverage, (e) Personal and Advertising Injury and (f) Explosion, Collapse and 
Underground- XCU (when applicable).  Waiver of Subrogation in favor of the CITY and 
COUNTY is required.  The policy shall be endorsed to include an Aggregate Per Location 
endorsement. 

Coverage shall be no less comprehensive and no more restrictive than the coverage provided by 
ISO standard Commercial General Liability Policy form ISO CG 0001 including standard 
exclusions or a non-ISO equivalent form.  

 
C. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE

 

:  The Contractor shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 
combined single limit covering Bodily Injury and Property Damage.  Coverage shall include all 
owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles.  If the Contractor’s business does not own any vehicles, 
coverage is required on non-owned and hired vehicles.  Policy shall include Contractual Liability 
coverage.  Waiver of Subrogation in favor of the CITY and COUNTY is required. 

D. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY INSURANCE

 

:  The General Liability and Automobile 
Liability Insurance requirements above may be satisfied with a combination of primary and 
Umbrella or Excess Liability Insurance.  If the Umbrella or Excess Insurance policy does not 
follow the form of the primary policies, it shall include the same endorsements as required of the 
primary policies.  Waiver of Subrogation in favor of the CITY and COUNTY is 
required. 

46



 21  

E. ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT

 

: The General Liability Insurance policy shall 
include the CITY and COUNTY as an Additional Insured.  The General Liability Insurance 
policy shall include standard ISO endorsements CG 20 26 07 04 and CG 20 37 07 04 or their 
ISO/non-ISO equivalents.  The Contractor’s insurance shall be primary to that of the CITY and 
noncontributory to any other insurance or similar coverage available to the CITY whether the 
other available coverage is primary, contributing or excess. 

F.  GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY ENDORSEMENT

 

:  The General Liability Insurance policy 
shall include the CITY Governmental Immunities Endorsement language as provided below. 
Standard ISO or insurance carrier “Waiver of Immunity” endorsements are not acceptable. 

CITY OF DES MOINES, IOWA 
                                GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity

 

.  The insurance carrier expressly agrees and states 
that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of Des Moines, Iowa and the 
Polk County Conservation Board as Additional Insured does not waive any of the 
defenses of governmental immunity available to the City of Des Moines, Iowa and Polk 
County Conservation Board under Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it 
may be amended from time to time. 

2. Claims Coverage

 

.  The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of insurance shall 
cover only those claims not subject to the defense of governmental immunity under the 
Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time.  
Those claims not subject to Code of Iowa Section 670.4 shall be covered by the terms 
and conditions of this insurance policy.   

3. Assertion of Government Immunity

 

.  The City of Des Moines, Iowa and Polk County 
Conservation Board shall each be responsible for asserting any defense of governmental 
immunity, and may do so at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of 
the insurance carrier.  Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier 
from asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Des 
Moines, Iowa and Polk County Conservation Board. 

4. Non-Denial of Coverage

 

.  The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage under this policy 
and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and benefits accruing to the City 
of Des Moines, Iowa and Polk County Conservation Board under this policy for reasons 
of governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has ruled in 
favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of Des Moines, 
Iowa and Polk County Conservation Board. 

5.    No Other Change in Policy

 

.  The insurance carrier and the City of Des Moines, Iowa and 
Polk County Conservation Board agree that the above preservation of governmental 
immunities shall not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy.   

G.  CANCELLATION & NONRENEWAL NOTIFICATION ENDORSEMENT

 

:  The General 
Liability Insurance policy shall be endorsed to provide the CITY and COUNTY with no less 
than thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, forty-five (45) days Advance 
Written Notification for Nonrenewal and ten (10) days Written Notification of Cancellation 
due to non-payment of premium.  Written notifications shall be sent to:  City of Des 
Moines, Procurement Administrator, City Hall, 400 Robert D. Ray Drive, Des 
Moines, Iowa 50309 and to Polk County Conservation Board,11407 NW Jester 
Park Drive, Granger, Iowa, Attention: Dennis Parker, Director. 

47



 22  

 
H.   WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:

 

  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the CITY and COUNTY, including their respective elected and appointed officials, 
agents, employees and volunteers and others working on their behalf, from and against any and 
all liability or responsibility to the Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor 
by way of subrogation or otherwise for any loss without regard to the fault of the CITY or 
COUNTY or the type of loss involved including loss due to occupational injury.  This provision 
shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect to loss or damage occurring 
during the time of this Contract.  The Contractor’s policies of insurance shall contain either a 
policy provision or endorsement affirming the above stated release in favor of the CITY and 
COUNTY including its elected and appointed officials, agents, employees and volunteers, and 
others working on their behalf. 

I. PROOF OF INSURANCE

 

:  The Contractor shall provide to the City of Des Moines, Iowa and 
Polk County Conservation Board separate Certificatess of Insurance evidencing all insurance 
coverage as required in paragraphs A through H above utilizing the latest version of the ACORD 
form.  The Certificate(s) of Insurance shall specify the Title of the Agreement under “Description 
of Operations/Locations/Vehicle/Special Items”. A Copy of the (1) Additional Insured 
Endorsements, (2) Governmental Immunities Endorsement and (3) Cancellation and Nonrenewal 
Notification Endorsement shall be submitted with the Certificates of Insurance.  Mail 
Certificates of Insurance to:  City of Des Moines, Procurement Administrator, City 
Hall, 400 Robert D. Ray Drive, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 and to Polk County 
Conservation Board,11407 NW Jester Park Drive, Granger, Iowa, Attention: Dennis 
Parker, Director. 

J. AGENTS AND SUBCONTRACTORS

 

:  The Contractor shall require that any of its agents and 
subcontractors who perform work and/or services on behalf of the Contractor purchase and 
maintain the types of insurance customary for the services being provided. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 
 

For purposes of this Section 3, the term “CITY” means the City of Des Moines, Iowa and the Polk 
County Conservation Board, their elected and appointed officials, agents, employees and volunteers, 
and others working on their behalf.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor agrees to 
defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY against any and all claims, 
demands, suits, damages or losses, together with any and all outlay and expense connected therewith 
including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and court costs that may be asserted or claimed against,  
recovered from or suffered by the CITY by reason of any injury or loss including, but not limited to, 
personal injury, bodily injury including death, property damage including loss of use thereof, and 
economic damages that arise out of or are in any way connected or associated with Contractor’s work 
or services under this Agreement, including that of its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors and 
others under the control of Contractor.  

 
Contractor’s obligation to indemnify the CITY contained in this Agreement is not limited by the 
amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable under any workers’ compensation acts, 
disability benefit acts, or other employee benefits acts. 

 
The CITY shall not be liable or in any way responsible for any injury, damage, liability, claim, loss or 
expense incurred by Contractor arising out of or in any way connected or associated with Contractor’s 
work or services under this Contract, including that of its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors 
and others under the control of Contractor, except to the extent caused by or resulting from the 
negligent act of the CITY.  

 

48



 23  

Contractor expressly assumes responsibility for any and all damage caused to CITY property arising 
out of or in any way connected or associated with Contractor’s work or services under this Contract. 
including that of its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors and others under the control of 
Contractor.  

 
Contractor shall ensure that its activities on CITY property will be performed and supervised by 
adequately trained and qualified personnel and Contractor will observe all applicable safety rules.   

 
 

49



 

 
2727 SW Snyder Boulevard  |  P.O. Box 1159  |  Ankeny, IA  50023 
p: 515.964.2020  |  f: 515.964.7938  |  www.snyder-associates.com 

J:\2013_Projects\113.0183\Correspondence\Agreements\ChangeOrderForAdditonalServices_No2.docx 

Change Order for Additional Services 

This change order authorizes Snyder & Associates, Inc. to proceed with the following described 
additional services. 

Client: Polk County Conservation 

Attention: Dennis Parker 

Project Name: Easter Lake Trail Final Design 

Project #: 113.0183.01 Change Order Date: 01/10/2014 

Description of Additional Services 

See Attachment A, “Easter Lake Trail Project, Supplemental Services No. 2”. 
  
 

 Lump Sum             
 

 Hourly in accordance with the Snyder & Associates, Inc. current standard fee schedule. 
 

 Document Attached  
 
The undersigned, on behalf of the Client, understands and agrees that the services described in this Change Order 
are additional services, scope of which is not contained within the original scope of services defined in the 
original agreement. The Additional Services in this Change Order are subject to the general terms and conditions 
contained in the Original Agreement dated March 13, 2013 . 
 
   

Client Authorized Signature Date 

   

Snyder & Associates, Inc. Authorized Signature Date 

 
Route Executed Copy to:  Jenifer Bates 

50



J:\2013_Projects\113.0183\Correspondence\Agreements\SupplAgmt2_010814.docx Page 1  

 

ATTACHMENT A 
Easter Lake Trail Project  

Supplemental Services No. 2 
 
 
The following additional services are requested for the Easter Lake Trail project.  

 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION AND OBSERVATION FOR PHASE II 

 
A. Construction Administration: Upon award of the construction contract, the Consultant 

will perform the following administrative services during the construction of the project. 
 

1. Preconstruction Conference – The Consultant will arrange and conduct a 
preconstruction conference with the Contractor, County and utility companies to 
review project requirements, and work schedule.  The Consultant will prepare 
minutes of the conference and forward them to the County for review and 
distribution. 

 
2. The Consultant will make available the project engineer for periodic site 

observations should the need arise during the construction of the project. 
 

3. Submittals Review – The Consultant will review shop drawings, test reports, and 
materials certifications to ensure compliance with project specifications. This 
includes shop drawings and wave equation analyses for the two prefabricated steel 
truss pedestrian bridges. 

 
4. Pay Applications and Change Orders – The Consultant will develop pay applications 

based on Contractors request and progress of work, and negotiate change orders for 
approval by the County and State.   

 
5. Substantial Completion – The Consultant will determine when the project is 

substantially complete and recommend final payment to the County. 
 

B. Construction Observation: The Consultant will act as a resident engineer and will 
oversee construction administration duties for the duration of the construction phase.  The 
resident engineer will give guidance to the project during the construction periods, 
including the following. 

 
1. Periodic observation of the work for general compliance with the project plans and 

specifications. 
 

2. Preparation of logs of the Contractor’s activities throughout the construction, 
including notation of extra work or changes ordered during construction. 

 
3. Coordinate acceptance testing and monitoring according to specifications. 

 
4. Resident engineer services, provide the County with representation at the project site, 

51



J:\2013_Projects\113.0183\Correspondence\Agreements\SupplAgmt2_010814.docx Page 2  

 

however, they do not guarantee the Contractor’s performance.  Nor do they include 
responsibility for construction means, controls, techniques, sequences, procedures, or 
safety used in the construction work. 

 
5. The Consultant will be responsible for an observer to provide periodic supervision of 

construction activities by the Contractor, if needed.  This includes basic daily log 
reports, not including NPDES logs, identification of installed materials, observation 
of installation practices, overview of traffic control required for construction 
activities, and issuance for non-compliance, if required. 

 
C. Record Drawings: Based on field notes and construction plan markups, the Consultant 

will develop a final set of record drawings.  The record drawings will be provided to the 
County. 

 
Fee for Services ...................................................................... Estimated Hourly Maximum $68,000 
 
CONSTRUCTION STAKING FOR PHASE II TRAIL CONSTRUCTION 
 
Snyder & Associates, Inc. will be responsible for providing construction stakes for Phase II from 
the end of the existing Ewing Park trail just east of Indianola Avenue, along the north side of the 
lake to near the park entrance on Evergreen Avenue.  The staking will include the construction 
limits, clearing & grubbing limits, proposed culverts, trail rough grading (50 foot intervals on 
curves, 100 foot intervals on tangents), and trail paving (25 foot intervals on curves, 50 foot 
intervals on tangents), and steel truss bridges (abutments, centerline bridge, centerline trail, and 
elevation hubs).  One set of stakes will be provided for each construction operation. 
 
For the SE 24th Street Connection, the property lines through the sidewalk easement area will be 
located and staked for Contractor’s use during construction. 
 
Also included in the construction staking task is a provision for staking up to four construction 
realignments as may be required. This work is anticipated based on the experiences from Phase I 
where once the site clearing operations had begun, it was determined by the Owner that four 
realignments were needed to protect existing large diameter trees or trees of significance that were 
thought to be too close to the construction operations.  
 
Fee for Services ...................................................................... Estimated Hourly Maximum $25,600 

 
COMPENSATION  
 
As per the original agreement dated March 13, 2013, the engineering fee will be on the basis of 
an Estimated Maximum Fee on hourly rates and fixed expenses as outlined in the Engineer's 
Standard Fee Schedule.  
 
 
 
 

52



J:\2013_Projects\113.0183\Correspondence\Agreements\SupplAgmt2_010814.docx Page 3  

 

Phase II 
Construction Administration And Observation For Phase II $68,000
Construction Staking For Phase II Trail Construction $25,600
TOTAL ESTIMATED FEE $93,600

 
  Anytime the Consultant anticipates that actual engineering costs will exceed estimated engineering 

costs, he shall immediately notify the County, in writing, of such proposed increase and the reasons 
therefore.  The County shall thereupon review such proposed increase and either accept or reject it.    
 
SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Services provided by the Consultant under this agreement shall be in conformity with the 
standard practices and requirements set forth below. 
 

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



PROPOSED RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT 
 

Whereas, the Federal Interagency partnership for Sustainable Communities has 
selected Greater Des Moines as one of 45 initial regions to pursue regional sustainable 
development planning; 
 

Whereas, the people of Greater Des Moines wish to strengthen diversity and 
equity in order to promote the environmental and economic health of the region, this 
community, its neighborhoods, and its individuals; 
 

Whereas, we intend to stay attentive to the needs of future generations and to 
the current shifting trends in demographics, economics, and nature, as well as 
expectations of significant regional growth; 
 

Whereas, we value the integration of social, economic, and natural resource 
needs and opportunities with a strategic direction for the region’s future; 
 

Whereas, we intend to build on current cooperative ventures throughout the 
region to find additional opportunities to collaborate, create efficiencies, and provide 
higher quality services to residents; 
 

Whereas, the means to a vibrant, lasting future includes a healthy environment, 
in addition to expanded choices and access within the areas of health, food, 
transportation, housing, work, culture, education, and play; 
 

Whereas, steps can be taken today that will lead to a well-balanced tomorrow 
that maximizes the betterment of the entire region; 
 

Whereas, local governments, community organizations, and the public developed 
The Tomorrow Plan as a voluntary, best-practices guide for local jurisdictions, 
stakeholder organizations and 28-E organizations, including the MPO, but does not 
dictate specific funding strategies or policy decisions that are within the authority of 
these organizations or jurisdictions. 
  

Therefore, be it resolved that we, the members of Polk County Conservation 
Board, endorse the vision, mission, goals, strategies, and initiatives presented in The 
Tomorrow Plan and intend to continue working within our community and across the 
region to help this plan become reality. 
 
 
____________________________         _______________ 
Chair, Jim Cataldo    Date 

66



Emerald Ash Borer Management Strategy 
Polk County Conservation Board 

 
Climate factors and disease are just a few of the threats that will continue to impact our natural 
areas indefinitely. As a result, Polk County Conservation (PCC) works diligently to improve 
woodland management and diversify our native plantings countywide.  
 
PCC has been concerned about the Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) since 2006 and completed our 
first assessment of trees in our “mowed areas” during the winter of 2006-2007. The initial 
inventory identified 774 ash trees in our “mowed or manicured” areas. Since that time, PCC 
has implemented a strategic tree removal and replanting action plan that is outlined below. 
The borer is expected to be confirmed in Polk County within 1-2 years. One beneficial 
characteristic of EAB is its slow moving nature. Once affected, it takes a tree 3-5 years to 
die from EAB. This lengthy process, coupled with sufficient forewarning, has allowed our 
staff to develop a thoughtful and constructive approach to address EAB. 
 
Ash trees in our mowed areas have been inventoried and classified into three risk zones which 
include: very high risk, high risk and moderate risk. These risk classifications mainly take 
into consideration the safety of our park users and the overall health of the tree. Staff will 
take a different approach in managing its remaining areas which are classified as low 
risk/wild areas. Limited removal of ash will occur in these areas and evaluation will be 
done on an individual basis as needed to ensure safety and promote a healthy forest. 
Studies have found that there are no benefits associated with removing ash trees in natural 
areas to reduce the spread of EAB.  
 
While PCC continues to research ways to use the excess lumber derived from ash tree 
removals, we currently are using the lumber for park firewood and wood chips to mulch 
trails. We have also encouraged the public to obtain firewood cutting permits from us. This 
win-win situation reduces the number of ash trees in our parks and provides free firewood 
to the public. 
 
Currently, PCC has 544 ash trees that remain standing in our mowed areas. Therefore, 230 
trees (30%) have been removed since 2008. Additionally, staff has planted replacement 
trees where ash have been removed or will be removed in the future to maintain the 
integrity of our mowed areas. Once the borer arrives, PCC does not anticipate using 
chemical treatments to preserve ash trees unless it is temporarily necessary while a 
replacement tree matures. PCC will be reluctant to take on the long term cost associated 
with chemical treatments. 
 
PCC expects our removal and replanting process to continue for approximately five more 
years. If there is a silver lining to EAB, it will be the newfound emphasis on the 
importance of species diversity and sound woodland management planning. Native 
hardwoods such as oak, hackberry, walnut, cherry, and maple will regenerate and thrive as 
ash die off through Mother Nature’s amazing cycle of life.      

67



UNIT # UNIT
Revenue 
Budget

Total 
Revenues 
Received 

Balance 
Due

% 
Received

General - Fund 1
0212 Infrastructure -$                         -$                       -$                      0.0%
0213 Equipment 4,000$                 7,697$               (3,697)$             192.4%
6006 Environmental Ed 55,000$              7,327$               47,673$            13.3%
6009 Natural Resources 176,300$            69,490$             106,810$          39.4%
6101 Administration 109,100$            157,587$           (48,487)$           144.4%
6103 Community Outreach -$                         -$                       -$                      0.0%
6104 Conservation Grants -$                         283,292$           (283,292)$         0.0%
6110 Parks Advocacy Unit 466,000$            245,029$           220,972$          52.6%
6119 Construction/Maint. -$                         30$                    (30)$                  0.0%
6124 Equestrian Center 311,000$            168,854$           142,146$          54.3%
Sub-Total - General Fund 1 1,121,400$        939,305$           182,095$          83.8%
REAP - Fund 26
0211 Resource Enhancement 103,200$           151,409$           (48,209)$           146.7%
Reserve - Fund 50
0210-0214 Special Projects -$                       116,264$           (116,264)$         #DIV/0!

0210 Water & Land Dev & Trails 1,100,000$        782,115$           317,885$          0.0%
Grand Total - Conservation 2,324,600$   1,989,093$   335,507$     85.6%

2013- 2014 Revenue Budget
- as of 01/31/14 (58.33% of budget year expired)

Bond - Fund 51

68



UNIT # UNIT
Expense 
Budget

Total 
Expended

Balance 
Remaining

% 
Expended

General - Fund 1
0212 Infrastructure -$                           -$                          -$                          #DIV/0!
0213 Equipment 158,500$              110,119$               48,381$                69.5%
6006 Environmental Ed 373,691$              239,031$               134,660$              64.0%
6009 Natural Resources 738,882$              460,954$               277,928$              62.4%
6101 Administration 955,972$              622,941$               333,031$              65.2%
6103 Community Outreach 207,048$              141,997$               65,051$                68.6%
6104 Conservation Grants -$                           8,947$                   (8,947)$                 #DIV/0!
6110 Parks Advocacy Unit 468,059$              283,125$               184,934$              60.5%
6119 Construction/Maint. 1,067,239$          727,679$               339,560$              68.2%
6124 Equestrian Center 409,939$              272,553$               137,386$              66.5%
Sub-Total - General Fund 1 4,379,330$          2,867,347$            1,511,983$           65.5%
General Supplemental - Fund 2
All Units Benefits (IPERS/FICA/Ins, Etc.) 1,003,097$          581,017$               422,080$              57.9%
Risk Management - Fund 3
6100 Insurance,Med., Work. Comp. 96,300$               82,644$                 13,656$                85.8%
REAP - Fund 26
0211 Resource Enhancement 147,225$             82,666$                 64,559$                56.1%
Reserve - Fund 50
0210-0214 Trails, Special Projects 499,200$             16,878$                 482,322$              3.4%
Bond - Fund 51
0210 Water & Land Dev & Trails 7,130,000$          6,459,539$            670,461$              90.6%
Grand Total - Conservation 13,255,152$  10,090,090$    3,165,062$      76.1%

2013- 2014 Expense Budget
- as of 01/31/14 (58.33% of budget year expired)

69


	February 2014 attachments.pdf
	28e - Mark Ackelson Trail.pdf
	ACKELSON AND EASTER LAKE SPINE RECREATIONAL TRAILS CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE CHAPTER 28E AGREEMENT
	BETWEEN
	THE CITY OF DES MOINES
	EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT
	Executed by the Polk County Conservation Board
	Executed by the City of Des Moines, Iowa
	CITY OF DES MOINES, IOWA   ATTEST:
	UATTACHMENT B
	Duties of Polk County Conservation Board
	Upon completion of the design of the City Trail Improvements,  County Conservation Board shall submit the final design documents for the Trail Improvements, including the final plans and specifications for construction and the cost estimate...
	9. When a contractor requests final payment for the construction of any separate element of the City Trail Improvements, the County Conservation Board shall arrange for a final inspection of such improvements and shall inform the City in writing ...
	UATTACHMENT C
	Duties of the City of Des Moines
	UATTACHMENT D
	Detailed Estimate of Costs for City Trails Improvements and Description of City Trail Improvements
	The City Trails Improvements will consist of a 10 to 12-foot wide multi-use trail, designed in accordance with American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO), Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities, 2012, 4th Edit...

	Jan 2014 Revenues.pdf
	Jan 2014

	Jan 2014 Expenses.pdf
	Jan 2014





